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B-3303 - B-3320 1841-1855/1920's 
1001-1061 S. Charles St. (East side) 
Baltimore, Md. 
Private access 

The east side of the 1000 block of S. Charles St. is improved by a variety 
of types of combination commercial/residential brick structures. At the northern 
end of the block there is a group of two and a half story, late Federal style houses 
built in the 1840's (1001-1011 S. Charles St.) of which 1001 has been enlarged to 
three stories in height with a shed roof and 1003-1007 have had bracketed cornices 
added to the original two and a half story form, and 1009-1011 has had a new, 
shed roof added to a modernized exterior. Moving towards the south one finds a 
group of two story plus attic, two bay wide houses (1015-1031 and 1035-1039 S. 
Charles St.) of which 1021-1023, 1025-1027, 1031, and 1039 have been enlarged to 
a full three stories in height and now have shed roofs and bracketed cornices. 
Finally, there is a group of three story-, gable-roofed houses (1033, 1041-1059--
S. Charles St.) built in the late 1840's and early 1850's. Of this latter group, 
however, only 1041-1043 S. Charles St. retain their original gable roof slope—the 
others have had false shed roof fronts, with bracketed cornices, added, or have 
had the original gable roof rebuilt-as. a shed roof and a bracketed cornice added. 
All of the buildings on this side of S. Charles St. currently serve a mixed 
commercial/residential use and a number are now in the process of being renovated-
and refurbished. John S. Gittings and his partners Randle Moale and Robert Purviance 
were responsible for the development of this side of S. Charles St. and built the 
majority of the houses in the northern section of the block. Henry Strube, a local 
carpenter, built the row of gable-roofed houses extending from 1049-1059 S. Charles 
St. The original house at 1061 S. Charles St. (part of Strube's row) has been 
replaced by a one story high, Art-Deco influenced brick building with round arched 
windows that extends back along Cross St. Built in the 1920's as a bank, the 
structure now serves as a local tavern _ 
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This pair of three story brick houses with gable roofs was built in the 
1840's and formed part of a group of such houses extending along this side of 
Charles St. The first floor areas of both houses have been converted into store­
fronts, that of 1041 Charles being part of a unit with 1039 Charles. 

The houses are three stories in height, 1041 Charles is 11 1/2' wide, 1043 
is 12' wide, and both occupy lots 65 1/2' deep. Each house is only one room deep. 
1041 Charles has a two story high, one bay wide, two bay deep frame rear addition,-
followed by a one story high, three bay deep frame section which is extremely 
deteriorated. 1043 Charles has a three story high, one bay wide and deep stair 
hall extension which connects the main house to a three story high, two bay 
deep rear addition. The houses are constructed in running bond. The low-
pitched gable roof has a continuous two-tier brick cornice. The houses share 
paired double rectangular chimneys located along the partition wall between the 
two houses on both the front and rear roof gables. 1043 Charles also has a rear 
end chimney located at the east end of the rear addition. 

Both houses are in the process of renovation and 1041 Charles has new 
vertical stretcher lintels on both its second and third floor window openings. 
1043 Charles has segmentally arched brick lintels with solid wood tympanums on 
all of its window openings. All of the sills on both houses are wood. The 
window openings at 1041 Charles are filled with new 1/1 double hung sash; 
those at 1043 Charles are filled with new 6/6 double hung sash. The first floor 
areas of both houses have been converted into store-fronts, both of which are 
currently being renovated. 1041 Charles shares a common store-front of Art 
Deco design with 1039 Charles St. There is a deeply recessed, centrally located 
(for the unit) glass and panel door flanked by two, three-sided plate glass shop 
windows set on stone bases. A wide, deep, and low arch, paneled on its underside, 
extends across the central area of the store-front, spring from the narrow front 
panels of the shop windows. Above the arch there is a paneld cornice area, with 
a plain freize set above two small square recessed panels set above each shop 
window, and two triangular panels flanking the wide arch. At 1043 Charles St. 
a glass and panel door is located in the southernmost bay, flanked by a three-
sided plate glass shop window set on a wooden base. The shop window has three 
transom lights set above the plate glass panels. A wooden cornice extends 
across the entire width of the store-front, consisting of a deeply projecting 
crown molding set above a plain freize area and supported by two large scroll-
sawed brackets. The entrance is reached directly from the sidewalk. 

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY 
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

These houses are significant as being representative of a large group of such 
three story, gable-roofed houses built in the 1840's and 1850's in the area immediately 
surrounding the Cross St. Market (founded 1846) to serve as combination commercial/ 
residential structures. The first floor area served as a store-front and the family 
lived on the floors above. 

These particular houses were built by Henry Strube, who also built the adjoining 
pair at 1045-1047 S. Charles St. (1045 is now demolished),land a similar row of houses 
across Charles St. at 1036-1044 S. Charles St. An early resident of 1043 S. Charles St. 
'and owner of both houses) was Lorenz Merz, a glass blower. Later, both houses were 
occupied by shoemakers who undoubtedly had their shops on the first floor—a Ludwig 
Eckhardt at 1041 S. Charles and a Fred Weber at 1043 S. Charles. * 

Baltimore City Land Records, LiBer AWB 447, Folio 28 

Baltimore City Directory, 1856-57, 1860, 1865 
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The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created 
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the 
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section'181 KA, 
19 74 Supplement. 

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information 
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe­
ment of individual property rights. 

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust 
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle 
Annapolis, Maryland 21401 
(301) 267-1438 
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1041-1043 S.Charles Street 
Block 0934B Lot 011-010 
Baltimore City 
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B-3315 1041-1043 S. Charles St. 

M.E.H. 5/79 

West elevation 


